

Savannah Petroleum PLC (the ‘Company’)

Health, Safety, Security and Environment Committee

Terms of Reference

Reviewed and approved by the Board on 18 September 2018

1. Constitution

The Health, Safety, Security and Environment Committee (the “**Committee**”) was constituted as a committee of the Board of Savannah Petroleum PLC in accordance with the articles of association of the Company at a full meeting of the Board of Directors held on 26 January 2018.

2. Purpose of the Committee

- 2.1. The purpose of the Committee is to ensure that there is an appropriate framework of policies, procedures, systems and controls in place in relation to the health, safety, security and environmental (“**HSSE**”) risks arising from the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “**Group**”), to promote the appropriate culture, behaviours and decisions and to communicate the Board’s commitment to these matters to the Group’s staff, contractors and other stakeholders.

3. Duties of the Committee

- 3.1. The role and responsibilities of the Committee are to:
 - 3.1.1. oversee the development and implementation of, and compliance with, a strategy and framework of policies, procedures, systems and controls to identify, assess, manage and report on the HSSE risks arising from the operations of the Group and promote the appropriate culture, behaviours and decisions (the “**HSSE Framework**”);
 - 3.1.2. appoint a senior manager to develop and implement the HSSE Framework and ensure appropriate training on the HSSE Framework is delivered to all employees;
 - 3.1.3. receive reports on the implementation of the HSSE Framework and all serious accidents and fatalities within the Group and any other statistics requested by the Committee, together with actions taken by management in response to such serious accidents or fatalities, oversee any significant internal or external investigations and review the corresponding reports;
 - 3.1.4. assess regularly and in any event, at least once a year, the decisions and actions taken in respect of HSSE matters, the outcomes delivered and their impact upon the Group’s employees and other stakeholders, as well as the strategic, business and reputational implications for the Group and make recommendations regarding areas for improvement, as appropriate;
 - 3.1.5. review regularly and in any event, at least annually, the HSSE risks arising from the operations of the Group and monitor the effectiveness of the Group’s HSE Framework and make recommendations regarding areas for improvement, as appropriate;
 - 3.1.6. regularly consider material legal, regulatory, technical and good practice developments relevant to the HSSE Framework and at least annually, assess whether the HSSE Framework is compliant with applicable legal and regulatory requirements and good practice, as well as the Group’s culture, values and expectations, and make recommendations regarding areas for improvement, as appropriate;

- 3.1.7. In particular, review regularly and in any event, at least annually the adequacy and effectiveness of:
- the Group's HSSE Management Plan; and
 - any other existing relevant policies, procedures, guidance, systems and controls;
- 3.1.8. evaluate and oversee, the quality and integrity of any reporting to external stakeholders concerning HSSE matters;
- 3.1.9. engage with government, regulatory and other public bodies, industry groups, advisors and other stakeholders on HSSE matters;
- 3.1.10. where it deems it appropriate to do so, appoint an independent adviser to review the Group's performance in relation to HSSE matters, together with any strategies and action plans developed by management in response to issues raised;
- 3.1.11. keep itself informed of any investigation of activities which are within its terms of reference, oversee such investigation when appropriate and review the findings,
- 3.2. make whatever recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area within its remit where action or improvement is needed.
- 3.2.1. consider such other matters as may be requested by the Board, working and liaising as necessary with all other Board Committees;
- 3.2.2. where there is an overlap of responsibilities between the Health, Safety, Security and Environment Committee, the Compliance Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee, the respective committee chairs shall have the discretion to agree the most appropriate committee to fulfil any obligation; and
- 3.2.3. give due consideration to applicable laws and regulations, governance and HSSE good practice, including the general duties of directors set out in the Companies Act 2006, the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code, and the requirements of the London Stock Exchange's rules for AIM Companies as appropriate; and
- 3.2.4. arrange for periodic reviews of its own performance and, at least annually, review its constitution and terms of reference to ensure it is operating at maximum effectiveness and recommend any changes it considers necessary to the Board for approval.

4. Reporting

- 4.1. The Committee shall report formally to the Board on its proceedings after each meeting on all matters within its duties and responsibilities.
- 4.2. The Committee shall make whatever recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area within its remit where action or improvement is required.
- 4.3. Should the Committee not be satisfied with any aspect of the Group's HSSE policies, procedures, guidance, systems and controls, it shall report its views to the Board of Directors.
- 4.4. The Committee shall make a statement in the Group's annual report and/ or website about its activities.

5. Membership

- 5.1. The Board of Directors shall appoint the Committee Chairman. In the absence of the Committee Chairman and/or an appointed deputy, the remaining members present shall elect one of their number to chair the meeting.
- 5.2. The members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors, on recommendation of the Nomination Committee and in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee.
- 5.3. The Committee shall have at least three members, and shall include the Chairman of the Board and at least one member of the Audit and Risk Committee.
- 5.4. At the date of its formation, it was agreed that the Committee will be chaired by David Clarkson and the other members of the Committee will be Stephen Jenkins and Sir Stephen O'Brien.
- 5.5. Only members of the Committee have the right to attend and vote at Committee meetings. Other Directors, individuals and representatives may be invited to attend all or part of any meeting as and when appropriate.
- 5.6. Appointments to the Committee shall be for a period of up to three years, which may be extended by no more than two additional periods of up to three years
- 5.7. If a regular member of the Committee is unable to act due to absence, illness or any other cause, the Committee Chairman or in his absence the Board, may appoint another Director to serve as an alternate member.

6. Committee Meetings

Quorum

- 6.1. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business will be two members of the Committee. Individuals in attendance at Committee meetings by invitation may participate in discussions but do not form part of the quorum for Committee meetings.
- 6.2. A duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present will be competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretions vested in or exercisable by the Committee.

Voting Arrangements

- 6.3. Each member of the Committee shall have one vote which may be cast on matters considered at the meeting. Votes can only be cast by members attending a meeting of the Committee.
- 6.4. If a matter that is considered by the Committee is one where a member of the Committee, either directly or indirectly has a personal interest, that member will not be permitted to vote at the meeting.
- 6.5. Save where he has a personal interest, the Chairman of the Committee will have a casting vote.

Frequency of meetings

- 6.6. The Committee shall meet regularly and in any event, at least three times a year at appropriate intervals. The Committee may meet at other times during the year as agreed between the members of the Committee or as required.

- 6.7. Outside the formal meeting programme, the Committee Chairman shall maintain a dialogue with key individuals involved in the Company's HSSE matters including the Chairman of the Board, the CEO and the Country Managers.

Secretary

- 6.8. The Company Secretary or his or her nominee shall be the Secretary of the Committee and shall ensure that the Committee receives information and papers in a timely manner to enable full and proper consideration to be given to all issues.

Notice of Meetings

- 6.9. Meetings of the Committee shall be called by the Secretary of the Committee at the request of any of its members.
- 6.10. Unless otherwise agreed, notice of each meeting confirming the venue, time and date together with an agenda of the matters to be discussed at the meeting will be forwarded to each member and any other person required to attend no later than five working days before the date of the meeting. Any supporting papers will be sent to each member of the Committee and to other attendees (as appropriate) at the same time.

Minutes

- 6.11. The proceedings and resolutions of meetings of the Committee, including the names of those present and in attendance, shall be minuted.
- 6.12. Draft minutes of each meeting will be circulated promptly to all members of the Committee. Once approved, the minutes of each meeting will be circulated to all other members of the Board of Directors unless it would be inappropriate to do so in the opinion of the Committee Chairman.

7. Authority

- 7.1. The Committee is authorised by the Board of Directors to:
- 7.1.1. examine any activity within its terms of reference;
 - 7.1.2. seek any information it requires from any employee of the Group or Director of the Company, or any consultant or other provider of services to the Group, in order to perform its duties and all such persons or firms will be directed to co-operate with any request made by the Committee;
 - 7.1.3. call any employee to be questions at a meeting of the Committee as and when required; and
 - 7.1.4. obtain at the Company's expense outside HSSE, legal or other professional advice on any matter within its terms of reference provided that the Committee will have due regard to their fiduciary duty to the Company and will only incur such costs as are reasonable in the circumstances.

8. General Matters

- 8.1. The Chairman of the Committee should attend the Annual General Meeting and, where required, any other general meeting of the Company, to answer shareholder's questions on the activities of the Committee.
- 8.2. The Committee shall:
- 8.2.1. have access to sufficient resources in order to carry out its duties, including access to the Company Secretary for assistance as required;

8.2.2. be provided with appropriate and timely training, both in the form of an induction programme for new members and on an ongoing basis for all members;